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BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 3, 2006

ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.C. No. 06-31, 06-49, 06-91, 06-92, 06-93, and 06-95)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance meeting of April 28 th , 2006 is
reconvened, Members. Good morning. It is May 3rd .•• Wednesday morning, and we are
reconvening from our. .. early Saturday morning recessed meeting that started on the
Friday morning of April 28 th • Thank you very much, Members. In attendance this
morning, we have the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Member Hokama; as well as
Members Carroll, Anderson... Member Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,
and Kane.
All Members are present this morning.
Thank you very much.
Members ...just a few comments before we gyt into ... opening the floor if there's any
additional requests. You should all have--and I'll just double check with Staff--the
updated Exhibit in your possession. And it's dated as of 5/3, today, at 8:19 a.m .
. . . Members, just a couple of the adjustments to highlight for your understanding and
where we're at, and then your Chair will open the floor for any other. .. situations that we
need to get clear. First, Members, if you recall at the end of the last meeting, or
the ... early morning hours, the Committee made certain adjustments to balance the
deci ... the deficit in the Highway Fund. One of these adjustments was to move 1 million
dollars, Lanai Landfill Storm Water System Reconstruction from Bond Funds to General
Fund cash. And if you recall, Members, this project is on Page 28-10 of your Program
Budget. And the project involves repairs to the storm water drainage system required in a
settlement agreement with the Department of Health, the State Department of Health.
The Director of Public Works and Environmental Management, Members, Mister... or
Director Arakawa, if you recall, requested that the 500,000 dollars requested in the
Mayor's proposed budget be increased to a total of 1 million dollars based on the
estimates provided by their consultants. And that was received after the Budget was
given to us. And I believe Member Hokama followed up with that for us to consider that
request. And we did acknowledge that. Members, because the project directly benefits
the Lanai Landfell, Landfill and is part of a settlement with the State Department of
Health for the continuation of operations of the landfill, this project should be paid for
from Solid Waste Funds. Therefore, we have made an adjustment in the Budget to fund
this project with Bond Funds so the Solid Waste Fund can pay the debt service, thereby
eliminating potential supplemental transfers to the Solid Waste Fund. Members, you can
see Page 30, on Line 1454 for this ... for this adjustment. Now, Members, in order to
maintain the same amount of bond debt, we have transferred 1 million dollars of the
2.5 million dollar funding for the Boys and Girls Club from Bond to General Fund cash.
This results in the Boys and Girls Club being funded by 1 million in General Fund
cash--which is on Page 24, Line 1158, and I can repeat this if you need to get there as
well--and the 1.5 million dollars in Bond. And that is on Page 30 of Line 1424.
Members, any questions in this area? And again, based on the information that we had
and the ...the follow up with the Administration, and specifically Mr. Ginoza, our Budget
Director--this was an adjustment that was made. Any questions or comments, Members,
in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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CHAIR KANE: Yes, Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Can you go over the Lanai Landfill, the
move from ... General Fund to Bond?
CHAIR KANE: You need the page number?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We have ...
· .. Page ... Page 30 on Line 1454 ...
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... And then to just balance out the adjustment, with Boys and Girls Club ... on
Page 24, Line 1158 ... that was the 1 million dollar adjustment in General Fund cash.
· .. And then the balance of that is on Page 30, Line 1424, and that shows the breakup of
the Boys and Girls Club, Lahaina... facility--the total, 2.5 million, 1 million General
Fund cash, the other 1.5 in Bond.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for clarity, Members, on this item?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Seeing none, Members, the Chair will proceed. There are some other
adjustments that we did anticipate. And so I will just state for the record what those
adjustments were. Members, if you recall, and every year we deal with this--and of
course, there are adjustments made to include the Fringe, the Overhead, and the Debt
Service and balance out the individual funds. So, Members, if you can note, and I'll, I'll
go slowly so you can go mark or highlight these areas. The transfer to the Emergency
Fund is at a total of3,078,032. This is found on Page 4, Line 183.
· .. And you'll note that the Council's adjustment from the Mayor's original 2.5 million
is 578,032.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Also on Page 4, Members, Line 152 ... the Debt Service has been increased
by 54,000 dollars.
NOTE:

Silence.
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CHAIR KANE: .... And on Page 28 ... and this is the last one, Members, that I'll note or
highlight for you. So on Page 28, Line 1349 ...
. . . we have the additional Road Repaving in the Highway Fund, Countywide, which is
now at 316,975.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Any questions or comments for clarity in this area, Members, on these three
adjustments?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Hearing none, Members, your Chair will proceed. If you'll note, you'll,
you've had distributed the list of provisos ... and that you should have that. So I ask that
you bring that out at this time .
. . . We'll go through the list, and then, Members, I will open the floor if there's any
requests for adjustments or revisions. And this has been approved by Corporation
Counsel, we did send it to them to have ...take a look at the language, the structure of the
prOVISOS.
So at this time, Members, we'll just go ahead--oh, and I'm sorry,
Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, Chair, will you be gIVIng up page references?
They're, they're not listed on this .. .list of proviso-CHAIR KANE: On the corp--excuse me, on the provisos?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's on there.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, I will.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: So I'll say that first, and then I'll go through the proviso itself. So, Members, is
it okay if we proceed with that?
COUNCILMEMBER

: Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER _ _ : No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. On Page 3, Line 116.
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MS. SAKAMOTO: It's also highlighted on the Exhibit.
CHAIR KANE: And I believe it's highlighted on your Exhibit, too, Members, so that will also
help to get there and .. .identify it. Page 3, Line 116, Department of the Corporation
Counsel, Legal Services Program. And the proviso reads: provided that 200,000 shall be
for acquisition costs of Wailuku Water Company watershed and water-related assets,
including an appraisal and to hire special counsel. Any questions or comments for clarity
in this area? Any request for adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Members, your next item on Page 5, Line 203 ...
· .. involving the Department of Fire and Public Safety, specifically under Fire Rescue
Operations Program ...the proviso will read: provided that 621,274 dollars shall be for
Hazardous Materials Response Operations.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Moving on, Members. Under the Department of Housing and Human
Concerns on Page 8, Line 372 ...
· .. specifically, a grant to the Volunteer Center for Project Graduation Program for Maui
and Lanai ... proviso will read: provided that no more than 5,000 dollars shall be granted
to each high school, and that 50 percent of each school's grant shall subsidize graduates'
participation based on economic need.
NOTE:

Silence.

' - ' ..LJlL}'.L"_

KANE: ... Moving on, Members. On Page 9,

388 ...

· .. with respects to the grant to Maui Academy of Performing Arts ... the proviso will
read: provided that the grantee raises matching funds from non-County sources.
· .. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just have a question with regard to the wording. If the
person, or let's say the entity does get a State grant, would this, the way this is worded,
qualify for matching funds?
CHAIR KANE: Because it's non-County sources--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So it's all inclusive of anything outside of County monies.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because when you say "raises", to me, that implies
that they go out and they do a fundraiser. So that was the only reason why I just
questioned it.
CHAIR KANE: And let me-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: As long as it would qualify.
CHAIR KANE: Let your Chair get a confirmation from Ms. Fujita from Corporation Counsel so
we can verify that. Ms. Fujita?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, yes, that, the current language would allow a
State-funded matching grant.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, any other questions?
· . . Hearing none, the next item is the grant to West Maui Health Care Alliance on
Page 9, Line 412.
· . . The proviso will read:
non-County sources.

provided that the grantee raises matching funds from

· .. And finally--in this area, anyway--the grant to Molokai High School for alcohol-free
graduation activities on Page 9, Line 416 ... proviso will read: provided that 50 percent
of the grant shall subsidize graduates' participation based on economic need.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Okay. Also the Department of Housing and Human Concerns, Members,
under Animal Management Program, there are a total of four provisos.
· .. First proviso on Line 420 ...provided that County funds shall not be used to purchase
vehicles.
· . . On Line 421, proviso--provided that County funds shall not be used to purchase
TASER devices.
· .. The third proviso on Line 422, provided that 37,000 shall be for the Molokai Humane
Society for the spay and neuter program and office space.
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· .. And on Line 423, provided that 14,920 dollars shall be for the Feline Foundation of
Maui.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... On Page 2 on the back, Members, of your handout, Office of the Mayor,
grant to Maui Community College for nursing and dental assistant programs. This is on
Page 11, Line 517 ...proviso will read: provided that the grant shall be restricted to the
nursing and dental assistant programs, and that the grantee raises matching funds to
specifically meet this condition from non-County sources.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Chairman...my, my comment--and, and thank you for your
Staffs hard work this past weekend and the last few days.
· .. I just bring up the point that it is my understanding that the, your Committee has
challenged the State ... to ante up and, and put up ... their resources for this program. I
can report to you today, Mr. Chairman, that. .. what the Board of Regents requested to the
Legislature is in the State Budget, and it is decked for final decision tomorrow
night--which is one position for MCC. And that was the request sent to the Legislature.
One position. And they're receiving that request.
· .. I would just ask the Members, if we are really challenging the State, then should we
not make it clear that that's what we expect--to ante up and match our funds,
Mr. Chairman. 'Cause I know there's movement to try and get some Federal funds,
which lets the State off the hook because that qualifies as non-County funds. So I
just. ..bring this up to the Members. And if the Members and your Committee,
Mr. Chairman, is comfortable with the language, that's fine. I, I support the, the intent of
what we're trying to accomplish here this morning. And I just raise that one point that I
wish to share. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Hokama. Any additional questions or comments in this
area, Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can I ask Mr. Hokama?
CHAIR KANE: Please. Please do. Member Hokama?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Hokama-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --is it too late for the State Legislature to put more money
into the ... this kind of request even though the College asked for one position, could
they .. .increase it to include five others?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: .. , Gee, you know, they decked a conference draft report, which
means both houses, through their managers, conferee managers have reached a
agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And so to add any... you need to have it added in both houses, or
one house could do it and the other house would be required to agree or with
disagreement their version of the budget might get sunk.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you know, right now I would say this ...
. . . you know there, there's other, you know, the main, the other main issues going
around with them right now is the gas cap and whether or not suspension will happen or
not. And I'm told that they are unwilling to now pull back the State budget conference
draft and make additional adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: They have come to ...resolution, I should say, on their issues.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you for that information.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: --Member Hokama. Any additional comments, Members?
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· . . Your Chair will just make one comment in this area, Members. And the Chair
appreciates Member Hokama's comments and would agree that our intent is to challenge
the State to step up to fund this ... State program. However... your Chair would ask your
consideration to support the language because it does broaden the ability to get funds to
move forward with helping this program off the ground, if you will. If we were to limit it
to just the State, knowing what they already have ... then I think we could enter more
discussion and just eliminate a lot more of this money since we know that it's not gonna
get, at this point, anyway. So the Chair would ask that this language is something that we
can support if we all feel comfortable ...with helping the program with some much
needed help.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: So thank you very much. And again, Member Hokama, with all respect with
your comments, and really appreciate those comments.
· .. Okay, Members, we're moving on. Under the Department of Planning, on Page 16,
Line 753 ...
· . . develop open space guidelines for South Maui, the proviso will read: provided that a
consultant shall be contracted to assist with community outreach.
· .. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: . . . Yeah, Mr. Chair, I don't recall this being ... the
language that I was proposing for the proviso. Uh ...
· .. the idea... behind both the Open Space Guidelines for South Maui and the Hana
Traditional Use Overlay funding ...was to empower community-based organizations who
have specific knowledge in these areas so that we aren't just relying on somebody
contracted by the Planning Department to come up with these ...these guidelines or, or
the overlay district. And much like the funding that was put aside for the Molokai
Overlay District. .. with the specific intent to empower a group on Molokai, a citizen's
group on Molokai, that was the intention with both of these two additional items. And I,
I did send provisos in to the Committee, but I was notified that we didn't actually...have
a vote or any concurrence on, on this language. I guess we were all too tired to deal with
it. So I, I would just ask that the Committee consider changing the pro, proviso for the
Open Space Guidelines on Line 752 to read ...
· .. um ... provided ...that a grant to a community-based organization with expertise in
open space guideline .. .in the open space guideline needs of South Maui.
· .. I do have this written out, Mr. Chair, if you'd like me to ... have it duplicated and sent
to the Members before we get to the end of this. I could do that, too.
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CHAIR KANE: That'll be appreciated. And if we can also make sure that we get Corporation
Counsel a copy because all provisos will pass through our legal counsel just to make sure
that it's all-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --it's all good.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: So, Members, we can defer on this item. Member Anderson, you can provide
Staff, and we'll make duplications ... and then we'll get back to this, Members, before
we ... adjourn the meeting, once we've completed our pass through.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson, thank you. Okay, Members, so we'll defer on that for the
moment.
· .. And I'll just wait a moment for Member Anderson so we can cover the rest.
· .. I will direct your attention, Members, to Line 807, Line ... excuse me, Line 807 on
Page 17.
This is under the Department of Public Works and Environmental
Management, Special Maintenance Program, General Fund. We have a proviso that
reads: provided that the Baldwin Beach House is not occupied and disbursement for
maintenance and security shall not exceed 40,000 dollars.
· .. Questions, comments, Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, we're moving on. Under the Department of Transportation
on Page 20, Line 976 ...
· .. grants and disbursements for Public Transportation Program, Highway Funds, the
proviso reads: provided that 200,000 shall be for Up country transit routes.
.
· .. QuestlOns,
comments.?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Hearing none ...we also have under that same Department, on Line 984 ... a
proviso regarding the grants to Hale 0 Lanakila: provided that the Fiscal Year 2006
appropriation shall not be encumbered.
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NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Moving on to Page ... 22 ... Line 1058 ...
· .. Department of Water Supply, Water Resources and Planning Program, General Fund.
The proviso reads: provided that disbursements shall be for a consultant for project
management, and to accelerate completion of the Water Use and Development Plan
Update. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. This was not the language that we
agreed to. I had specific ...timeframes involved and also a requirement for ...
· .. a quarterly status report to the Council. And I know that we all agreed to that
language because I ripped it off my sheet and gave it to Staff.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...
CHAIR KANE: We'll go ahead and follow-up, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so we defer on this item for the moment. .. as well as for the
Planning. Any questions or comments or additional clarification needed, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (inaudible) . .. 1057.
CHAIR KANE: Again, this is on Page 22, Line 1058.
NOTE:

Silence.

KANE: ... We have two more items, Members. On Page 32, Line 1544 ...
· . . under Capital Improvement Project, Park Assessment Funds, Kihei-Makena
Community Plan District. .. the proviso reads: provided that 100,000 dollars shall be for
Kalama Park Skateboard Course.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Questions, comments, adjustments? We're okay with this one, Members?
Thank you. The final one that we have noted, Members, is on Page 32, Line 1555, the
bottom of the page ... CIP, Park Assessment Funds, West Maui Community Plan District.
The proviso reads: provided that 100,000 shall be for a Skate Park Street Course.
NOTE:

Silence.
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CHAIR KANE: .. , Any questions, comments, adjustments?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, thank you, Members. We have two items that have out,
we're outstanding with. We'll make some clarification there, Member Anderson. So
once we get all that to us, then we'll sit and have a... a brief talk on that to make the
adjustment. In the meantime, I'd like to, at this time, recognize ... Ms. Fujita Villarosa
from Corporation Counsel to address a concern that they, the office had regarding
the ...road resurfacing specific to the Upper Ulumalu Road. So at this time, I'd ask
Ms. Fujita Villarosa to provide comment, and if she can provide us with a reference point
so the Members are clear where we're at and what the recommendation will be.
Ms. Fujita Villarosa?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, the reference is on Exhibit 1, Pages, or Page 29,
Line 1383. This is the appropriation for Upper Ulumalu Road resurfacing in the amount
of 250,000 dollars from the Bond Fund. And the other reference is on Page 35,
Line 1670 ... an appropriation, also, for Upper Ulumalu Road resurfacing in the amount
of 250,000 dollars from the Water Supply Funds, Unrestricted account. The concern has
to do with Upper Ulumalu Road not being, currently not being owned by the County and
the County--my understanding after speaking with the Director of Public Works, is that
the County doesn't have any property interest in that road .
. . . So my, my suggestion is to delete the word "resurfacing" from both appropriations,
just leaving the project title "Upper Ulumalu Road". That will allow the Department of
Public Works to start working on... the County acquiring some property
interest--whether that be an easement through the road or actual title to the entire road.
But it is not appropriate to use bond funds to fund a project on private property. But we
can, if we are taking steps to acquire property or acquire an interest, then we can go
ahead and, and use the bond funds. But with the word "resurfacing" in the description of
the project, it would not allow the Departments to use this funding to ... to begin
acquiring an interest in that road.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the comments. Member Anderson? So no
money adjustments, just wording, removing the word "resurfacing". Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
. . . I appreciate Ms. Villarosa's explanation. However .. .I think the question as to
whether or not the County.. .should own the road by, by... easement or by acceptance of
dedication to the County is still uncertain. There's much information in the Committee's
binder that contradicts whether or not this road should be ... owned by the County. And
so I would request that Corporation Counsel do the research and answer the request for
advice that the Committee has sent to Corp. Counsel with the supporting documentation
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which shows deeds that say easement to the County, in regards to the road. Uh... so that
they're ... you know ... the, the actual legal basis as to whether or not this road .. .is
owned by the County is researched before we just go forward and say okay, we'll, we'll
take responsibility and, and we'll own the road. Because if it's a matter of easement,
that's different than acquiring it as private property. So .. .1, I appreciate her looking into
that, but I think it's more, there's more information there than has been actually
researched by Corporation Counsel, because as yet we've gotten no response from them
on this issue. So .. .1 just wanna put that on the record, Mr. Chair, that. .. the residents in
this area, their deeds show that this is supposed to be a County road through easement.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Anderson. Any... any objection to the request that's being
recommended as far as removing the word "resurfacing"--and that, again, comes down
to ...what the recommendation is, is just the removal of the word "resurfacing", leaving
the money there, still titling it ''Upper Ulumalu Road", and providing the ... providing the
County with an ability to make some level of, including what you've stated,
Member Anderson... some level of interest or acknowledging that interest or taking steps
... (end a/tape, start lB) . .. Member Molina, followed by Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Just a comment. Sort of
dovetailing off of Member Anderson's ...remarks, with regards to Corporation Counsel
saying to do additional research, to seek, I guess, who owns the road and to give the
Departments a chance to consider acquiring the property...when can we get a response,
then, I guess, from Corporation Counsel? You know, because, you know prior questions
have been sent and, you know, for whatever reasons things have been held up. So what,
what assurances can the Committee have that Corporation Counsel will respond?
Because if, for example, a year goes by, then what happens to this funding? I
mean... you know ... so it lapses, I mean, what, and then can... you, you know what I'm
saying? I just want, what those questions answered. I mean, if we don't get a response
within a year or when this fiscal year ends, what happens then?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita, are you prepared to respond to the question?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I wasn't aware that there was a request to my office sent
on this matter. I'm not sure if the request that Councilmember Anderson is referring to
was sent in the, during this Budget session or if it was during, in some other Committee.
But I, I can look into that and see where that is. But today, this is the first time I'm
hearing about this request, personally. Whether or not the road is owned by the County is
a question of/act. And... you know, I did check with the Director who is familiar with
the project, and was told that the County does not have any property interest in the road.
We can verify that. You know, I guess the, the ... the thing that we could--oh, well, he
did tell me that there was a title search done awhile ago, I'm not sure when, but that the
title search only stated that the County did not own the road. It didn't state who owned it.
So ...we could get, maybe, an updated title report or a new title report to verify the fact
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that the County doesn't own the road and to find out who does own it because we have to
begin negotiations with the property owner once we find that out. But ...
. . . I mean, really to, to determine whether the County owns the road or not shouldn't
take that long because we just. .. you know, our Department would just check with, with
the Department who's responsible, which would be Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your comments. And I, I know it was
handled by another member of your office and I realize this is probably the first time
you've corne across it, Ms. Fujita Villarosa. So that, that's more my concern--is it's
taken so long to get a response, which I believe was dealt with in Member Anderson's
Committee, regarding the road. So that's just my concern, Mr. Chair, what happens if,
again, we wait another year for a response, nothing has corne out of the Corporation
Counsel's office, then what happens to the funding for this. So, anyway, I'll support your
recommendation, Mr. Chair, but I don't know if there's some way that we can get
assurances--well, I guess I'll take Ms. Fujita's word for it that the Committee will get a
response, at least before the end of the fiscal year, on this matter. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Johnson, followed by Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Yes, and...because this was dealt with III
Councilmember Anderson's Committee and because also ... a similar situation with
Puukolii Road .. .if the roadway--and basically the way that we accept road, roadway
dedication is when a road is up to County standard, then we consider it for legal
acceptance. That being said, if the roadway, let's say...were to be repaired ... even in a
grant that would be given to the homeowners or some other provision where the roadway
was actually brought up to standards, would that be a possibility, too? I realize that you
usually don't do bond money that way, but even on the other funds, would there be some
kind of possibility to at least allow that to happen? Corporation Counsel?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, it wouldn't be appropriate to use bond funds in that
manner. The County could consider using other funds. I mean, that's basically a policy
decision--whether the County wants to spend ... County funds to repair and maintain a
private road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Okay, but, but from your knowledge, usually the
circumstances under which we accept roadway dedication is when it is at a certain
standard. Is that correct?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: That is my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Anderson, followed by--Member Pontanilla, you had a
question?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I, I think she answered the question.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Villarosa, just to give you some
background on this, the request from, for information from Corp. Counsel regarding this
roadway was sent in May of '04. It was sent. .. again, I, and this was an, an initial request
from Member Molina. I resent the request to your office last year. And...Mr. Moto
responded by saying that the issue had be, been reassigned to Mr. Kushi, as of January of
this year, and that he would be responding. However, we have not received any
response. And... you know, the questions raised were if the County doesn't own this
road, what liability or what responsibility does the have, the County have to repair the
road because it went in and tore up the road without getting... permission from the
private property owners, supposedly, along the roadway--number one. And then also, the
questions ... surrounded whether or not the County is supposed to be taking responsibility
of this road because . .. there are subdivision maps that show the roadway is to be an
easement to the County. And these subdivision maps are approved by our County Public
Works. And so my suggestion is rather than a title search--because a title search is only
gonna show you what's been done, it's not gonna show you what hasn't been done--to go
back and research the subdivision records to see when this property was originally
subdibid, subdivided. On those subdivision maps, there would be notations as to whether
this roadway ...was required to be ...built at a certain width to meet County standards for
future dedication to the County. And this may just be a case, as we have found many
others, where dedications to the County are required during the subdivision process, but
then they're never followed through with to actually transmit to the Council for
acceptance .
... Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions or comments in this area, Members?
... Member Tavares? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Ms. Fujita Villarosa, if the money were not in
bond, would it be okay to be used for resurfacing, if it were Highway Funds?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, it, it would be legally possible to utilize other funds.
For instance ... the other half of the appropriation is in Water Supply, Unrestricted
Funds-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
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MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --so that, it would just be a policy question, whether the County
wanted to expend those, those monies. The legal problem is using bond funds.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you for that.
CHAIR KANE: Members, just to be clear from Member, from Ms. Fujita, your recommendation
is to delete the word "resurfacing" just from one area or on both areas, Page 29 and 35?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, my recommendation is to leave, uh, delete both
references to "resurfacing" because--well, I, I anticipate that. .. that the Administration is
gonna have to come back to Council anyway because I don't think that this money is
gonna be sufficient to do the project, plus acquire the property interest, whatever that may
be. But it would at least allow the Administration to use these funds to start that process
of acquiring title. And I, I don't know how much that's gonna cost. You know, I don't
know if, like Councilmember Anderson said, if the County is gonna actually have
to ... you know, what, what kind of improvements we're gonna have to make before we
can bring the roads up to the standards that the County requires before it accepts title.
And I don't know how much it's gonna cost to do a title report. Some title reports are
expensive, you know, depending on how, ifthere's broken chains. We may have to, you
know, if we can't find the property owner, we may have to ... go in for condemnation.
But all that, of course, would, you know, would, would have to come back to Council
anyway for all of those things.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so you've heard the recommendation. And the Chair would
ask for your consideration on the words ... the word "resurfacing" being deleted from
both areas of the, of your Exhibit, which would be part of the Budget Ordinance. Any
objections, Members, to the request?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objections
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No objections
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay. Hearing none, Members ... your Chair has no other. .. proviso
language to be reviewed. We can go back. .. to the two items that Member Anderson
asked us to consider. I know we received a handout, Members, and this is the second one
regarding the Water Use and Development Plan?
MS. SAKAMOTO and MR. TAGUCHI: No.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. I know that we received one from Member Anderson regarding the
Hana Traditional Use Overlay District, as well as the Open Space Guidelines. So,
Members, we'll talk about that first one. And that's under the Department of Plarming,
on Page 16.
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· .. We'll deal with the other one after this, yeah, Member Anderson? So we'll just take
this one step at a time. Thank you. Members, you should have something from our
colleague, dated 5/2106, 12:31 p.m., provisos ...regarding the Line 741 specific to this.
Ms. Anderson, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We're gonna start with 741, Chair?
CHAIR KANE: That's correct. The, the one that we have on, in this case, we have it on
Line 753.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. Er. .. yeah .. .(laughter). ..
CHAIR KANE: So that would be the reference to your Page [sic} 741, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
· .. Okay. You know, there's no proviso for the Molokai ... funding because it came
forward by the Department. And Deputy Director Boteilho told us what his intention was
to use this money, and it's for a group, I believe, called Malama Pono. So I don't know if
they require a grant to use this money or if. .. they can just. .. disburse the money to
the ... to ...
· .. to this group. So I used the language "grant" because I wasn't sure. I, I don't wanna
just give 10,000 dollars to the Planning Department to add to their ...
· .. professional contractors' ... grant. .. or contract. The idea being that we empower
community groups who have knowledge ... specific knowledge in their, in their area that
can then ...
· .. have ... real power in, the final development of. .. these ... open space guidelines or
traditional use overlays. So my request is ... for Line 752, to read: grant to
community-based organization with expertise in the open space guideline needs of South
Maui.
· .. That's without naming a specific group. But I think we probably all, all know it's
gonna end up with Kihei Community Association, who's very involved in formulating
open space guidelines for South Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions or comments regarding the proposal for consideration
of a pro ... proviso?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Member Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I thank Member Anderson for bringing
this forward. If we're gonna say "-based organization", we ... should grant it out to the
organization, really, by name. If it's gonna be Kihei Community Association, let's grant
it to Kihei Community Association.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for your comments. Any additional questions, comments,
clarifications? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
consideration.

Chairman, just, maybe, just two ... points for the Committee's

· .. Well ...my first one, I was gonna say maybe we wanna put "qualified organizations",
because, one, unless they have their nonprofit status squared away, no matter what, they
won't get the funds.
· .. Second, do we really wanna use the word "expertise"? Maybe "experience"? Are we
setting up certain things internally that automatically...have, have organizations or
people with good experiences taking out of it because they need to reach, maybe, a
certain different standard as an "expert" in the area, Mr. Chairman? So I just. .. share
those two points for the Committee's consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:
Thank you.
Member Anderson?

Any other questions or comments before I recognIze

· .. Hearing none, Member Anderson, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I have no problem with changing the
word "expertise" to "knowledge". I think that is only fair because what is "expert"?
· .. Urn... and, again, Mr. Pontanilla's suggestion--because this is a grant--that I guess, I
was trying to be fair and unbiased ... (laughter). . . but, you know, as we are granting
grants to organizations all throughout the budget, maybe that would be the proper thing to
do, is .. .is just grant it to the Kihei Community Association. There may be one
organization--and Kihei has their 501(3)(c) [sic}. There might be one other organization
that I could think of. .. which would be Greenways Maui, but I believe that. .. members
kind of crossover both these organizations. So ...to keep it specific to South Maui .. .I
would be in favor to changing the name grant to Kihei Community Association.. .if
there's no objections from the rest of the Members.
CHAIR KANE: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So-CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Go ahead, Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
So it would read:
grant to Kihei Community
Association... oh, it changes the whole thing, doesn't it ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER

: Yes.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: '"
for South Maui.
NOTE:

Urn ... for the development of open space guidelines

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Members ...the Chair's suggestion to consider is .. .instead of proviso-ing
this, we just make it one sentence as the title ...
. . . since we're just taking the title in it's entirety and just plugging in Kihei Community
Association-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .(laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --for the purpose of the title. Perhaps we can consider just it being a
revised...removing a proviso all together, and then just having it as a title.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: As a grant.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the title would be, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Similar to what you just stated. And that would be ... grant to Kihei
Community Association to develop open space guidelines for South Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That would be great.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa, any problems with us considering that as an option?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: No. No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any questions or comments or discussion on this item, Members?
... Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Just as an FYI, maybe if
Member Anderson could answer it--does the KCA, they do have a committee that
specializes in open space ... research?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, very much. They're very involved in, in .. .I mean,
they're ecstatic that we're giving them this kind of empowerment because they have been
working towards getting this finalized for many years now. And as they have said, if we
don't do it now, it's gonna be too late.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So there, there-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --is already a pro, an ongoing program. They just need
some help to get this finalized. So basically we're not waiting for the Planning
Department to make it a priority. We're allowing the organization to make it a priority.
CHAIR KANE: And just additional comment, Members, it would be similar to how we are
granting to Tri-Isle Main Street Association, and they have duties that assist the Planning
Department. So it would be along that lines, Members, similar vein--grant to Kihei
Community Association specific to the purpose that we have in front of us. Any
questions or comments or discussion on this proposal, Members, from
Member Anderson?
. . . Hearing none, Members, are there any objections to this being incorporated and
make, making the adjustment on Line 752? We would delete the proviso and we would
just modify the item number 16 on Line 752 to read: grant to Kihei Community
Association to develop open space guidelines for South Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, hearing no objections, Member Anderson, thank you for that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:
You had an additional--well, before we go there, do we
have .. .information... Staff, regarding the Department of Water Supply... Water Use and
Development Plan update language, revised language from Member Anderson?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, we've provided Corporation Counsel with the original language
that was proposed and accepted by this body for review. The changes were made
primarily...to try and .. .I believe ... clarify. I believe that we were not, we did not
remember that that was a consensus language that occurred during the Committee.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. So the Chair will ask Ms. Fujita Villarosa--are there any comments on
this specific area regarding the proviso that's being recommended to the body? And, and
you've heard Member Anderson's comments that this seems to not be the intent and that
specific language and timelines, I think, were proposed and accepted by the body. Is that
something that you need to revisit and get back to us on, Ms. Fujita Villarosa?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I did have an opportunity to review the original
language proposed by Councilmember Anderson. The one comment that I have
is ... there is a ... sort of a deadline in here to accelerate completion within two years.
And .. .I guess my first question would be just whether or not the consultant who's
currently working on the plan said that it would, is this sufficient money, I guess, to
complete it within two years--so whether this is a reasonable amount and whether that's a
reasonable time frame. But even if the consultant does say that, I guess ... my comment
is that it would be difficult to enforce this provision because even if the consultant said
that they could finish the, you know, project in two years for 250,000 dollars extra, what
happens if they don't? I mean, it'll, the budget will be done already, you know, this
budget year will have, will be over in two years. So .. .it's, it's fine to leave that in there,
but it, I think that it would be difficult to enforce because I don't know what would
happen if they didn't, if they didn't complete it within two years. What would be the
remedy at that point, besides, maybe, contractual? You know, we may have some,
maybe we may have ... you know, the ability to go after the contractor for damages
because they didn't complete the project in time. But as far as the budget goes, you
know, the budget will be over in two years, the ordinance would no longer be in effect.
So that's my only comment.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
comments?

Thank you, Corp. Counsel. Member Anderson, questions or

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Yeah.
First of all, Mr. Chair. .. this was ... a, a
concurred. .. proviso. And I have a big problem changing the original language that this
body basically voted on without giving us the option to vote to change it, number one.
CHAIR KANE: We're here for that. That's why we're here, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, where's the original language? I don't even have it
anymore 'cause I gave it-CHAIR KANE: We have it. And I can read it to you but if you, or if you need it copied, we can
get it copied and distributed. I can read it out now, and if it was something that was
voted on... again, the process was to just run it through Corporation Counsel. And they
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provided comments why they made adjustments. And they've made adjustments to
virtually all of' em to have language that's, I guess, enforceable, if you will.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: And so we have the language. And if you'd like, I can read it. And if the
Members still want to keep that there or it's already, without objections, just keeping it
the way it originally was stated and agreed with, we can do that as well,
Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: There's no legal objection by Corporation Counsel, is what I'm trying to say.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, okay. So I will just speak to Corporation Counsel's
comments first, and then I'd ask you to read the ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: First of all, the time frame is very important because that's
the whole point in this--is to accelerate the completion of the Water Use and
Development Plan. And ...
· .. the consultant. .. that I spoke with regarding this said that he could complete it in a
year-and-a-half. So I put in an extra six months ...just to take care of, you know, any
delays beyond his ... power. And that there's also, was also language in the proviso that
required for the contractor to give the Council a quarterly status report. And that way, it
keeps us apprised of where he's at. And, and if we find that there's a reasonable excuse
for extending the time frame, the Council certainly has the power to do that. So I don't
think it's a, a matter of enforcement or not. It's a matter of setting a time frame to get
this project done, so we have a target. And ...the ... you know, the, the funding is to
allow the private consultant to go out and get the help that the County has been
able ... has been unable to get--such as a hydro ...hydrologist who, I don't know if it's a
hydrogeologist, but anyway a hydrologist who can do the... scope out the, the cost that,
that are associated with the development plans and any technical staff to accelerate the
data that. .. that is necessary to finalize the plans. So .. .I think... that the original
language speaks to the purpose and intent. .. very clearly as to why we're putting these
funds in. And I want that. .. that statement to remain with it because then there's no
question ... as to why we're doing this. Urn ...
· .. you know, just to accelerate the completion of the Water Use and Development Plan
does nothing for me ... because does that mean accelerate it from six years to five years?
· .. I think we need the time frames that we originally voted on.

- 22 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 3, 2006

CHAIR KANE:
Thank you, Member Anderson.
Member Tavares.

Member Hokama, followed by

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Chairman, what ...
· .. you might wanna have your Staff help work out as a consideration... what we've
done with .. .I believe one or two other items in this Committee ... with ... accompanying
ordinance revisions.
· .. You know, when it comes to the budget, that's one thing. I think what maybe we
would like to consider. .. outside of the budget is maybe amending the Code to say that
the Water Development Plans as appropriate or. .. you know, whatever is
· . .(inaudible) . .. shall be completed and submitted to Council by... this date in this year.
· .. I would think that would give us a bigger sledge hammer, if you wanna call it that,
over the Department for performance. And maybe that's the, the clear, more
strong ... directive that the Council might want, want to take as a way to address the
concern of Ms. Anderson's need to have it accelerated to a reasonable time frame. So I
just offer that as a, another way to skin the cat, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I was trying to play around with some other
provisos in here that would address the need ... to put a deadline on here. And I come up
with that, the ...well, I'll just read it: provided that the consultant contract specifies a
two-year deadline for the completion of the Water Use and Development Plan. And then
the second proviso, that would be: provided that a quarterly status report be submitted to
the County Council. So we might have, you know, three provisos, but it's going, I think,
toward the right, in the right direction. And it's unfortunate, Mr. Chair, that we, we even
are considering something like this. But we have been waiting for a very, very long time
for a Water Use and Development Plan that is critical to the decisions that we make here
in the Council regarding land use applications. So we're sort of operating in a, in a
vacuum, so to speak, at lot of the times and just kind of like hoping that there's gonna be
water or depending on someone else's opinion that there is water without actually having
it in the plan. So I think that if these provisos help give direction and more clearly to
what our intent is to met our needs as a legislative body, then I believe that it's proper to
be put in to the, into the budget document. So I'd ask the Committee to consider that, or
if Corp. Counsel has any comments regarding those types of provisos.. .if she could
guide us with that.
CHAIR KANE: And before we do that, Members, I'd like to, without objections, go ahead and
read what Member Anderson gave to the Committee and what the body concurred on.. .if
I believe that to be correct, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson submitted and the body concurred: independent contractor
for project management of the Countywide Water Use and Development Plan to
accelerate its completion within two years; contractor shall provide quarterly status
reports to the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: So ... and so that's the language, and then if we could do some wordsmith-ing,
you know, just to, to ...to have it refined to, to be more accurate in what we're trying to
get, then we can do that as well. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Urn... that language was carefully
crafted for specific purposes. And it was crafted with the aid of Council Services
Director, Mr. Fukuoka... to specifically put parameters out there. As you will see,
that. .. the language here is very watered down and is not clear, doesn't say that it's to
complete the Countywide Water Use and Development Plan. Urn ...
. . . so I, I would respectfully request that the Members stick with the original proviso
because it was carefully crafted. And as I said, Mr. Fukuoka assisted me in doing that so
that we could met the parameters of what we're trying to accomplish .. .(end of tape,
start 2A) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I would also add, Mr. Chairman, that. . .I appreciate
Member Hokama's suggestion that maybe we tighten things up ordinance-wise. But as it
is right now, in our County Charter and in our County Code, there's a requirement for the
Water... Department to provide us with an armual update of the Water Use and
Development Plan. And that has never happened ... as far as I know in the seven, eight
years I've been in this County. So whether it's in the County Code ... (laughter). .. or
even in the Charter, doesn't necessarily guarantee it's gonna happen. So that's why we
need the funding, Members. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Because we've had an independent
contractor do the Up country, as well as the Central Maui Water Use and Development
Plan, the language indicated "independent", as noted... how will we handle that existing
contract that is with the Water Department for the Central Maui, as well as the Upcountry
Water Use and Development Plan? Will that contractor be available to, or made
available to be part of the contract to continue on the Water Use Development Plan for
Central Maui as well as Up country?
CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. And ...you know, Members, the reason the language
was crafted in the way it was crafted was so that. . .the person who's already
built. .. background knowledge and put lots of time in this and has already the expertise
to carryon with this project can assume the project management and actually accelerate
the project. It's very unlikely that there's any independent contractor that can come in
and, and meet the requirements to get the Countywide plan done in two years without the
background knowledge that this contractor has already established. So none of this is,
has been done by guessing. It's been done by... consultation with, with the contractor
who's already working on the job. And ... so ... that's the intent here--even though we,
you know, we can't say that the money is gonna go to a specific contractor. We can
certainly craft the parameters to point it in that direction.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --Chair. Yeah, if we could do that, then, you know,
it's ... you know, I think it's gonna be money well spent for him to accelerate his
studies .. .in regards to completing the Water Use Development Plan for Upcountry as
well as Central Maui. I know the Committee and the community has been meeting for
several years now and was hopefully that the ...the Water Use and Development Plan for
Central Maui, as well as Up country, would have been completed in the January or
February time frame, you know, to coincide with the General Plan update. So .. .if that
independent contractor will, will be made available through this ... acceleration, then at
least most of the work, you know, up front work has been done. So thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. And I just might add for the Members
that. .. once we get through with budget, I will be bringing our contractor to our Water
Use and Development Plan to give us a status update as to where he is right now, what
needs to be done, and, and just lay it out for us so we all know what direction we're going
and what needs to be accomplished to get us on this accelerated path.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional questions, comments?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Ms. Fujita Villarosa, have you had an opportunity to take a look at the
original language submitted as far as form and legality? We, we've heard your
comments regarding ... the adjustments because of the time frame, however, as a policy,
the body did vote and was, were unanimous in accepting the language as submitted. Are
there any legal issues that we need to contend with?

- 25 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

May 3, 2006

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, Members, without objections, we'll make sure that the original
language as submitted, which was voted on by this body and submitted in to ... as a
prOVlSO--

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: --okay, Members?
· .. Okay, hearing any further questions on that particular item, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... No.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. The floor is open for additional items. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we go back to the Hana Traditional Use Overlay
District?
CHAIR KANE: You have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. That would be on ...
· .. Line 750 ...
· .. Is it 749 on the new one?
CHAIR KANE: 748, yes. Members, Page 16, Line 748.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Because we have several. .. cultural groups in Hana
that could qualify for this type of a grant, Mr. Chair. .. and all of them have areas of
expertise in the ... cultural and traditional. .. areas in Hana, I, I would ask that we put a
proviso that reads: grant to a community-based organization with knowledge cultural
resources of the area to develop overlay district. So I'm changing "expertise" to
"knowledge", based on ...Mr. Hokama's suggestion.
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay, Members, we have a proposed-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean, we can't-CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --give 'em grant, I'm sorry. We can't give 'em a grant
unless they have one, 501. .. (3)(c)--
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CHAIR KANE: '" (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --or whatever it is .. .(laughter) . .. So I don't think we
need to say "qualified", just grant to community-based organization with knowledge in
cultural resources of the area to develop overlay district.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
comments?
NOTE:

Members, you have the proposal before you.

Any questions,

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: '" Are there any objections to having this language incorporated into Line 749
area where it says "No revision", we'd have a revision with a proviso?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Any objections?
. . . Hearing no objections, Members, the language will be incorporated in the Hana
Traditional Use Overlay District.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member... Members, if you recall, or if you have with you,
Member Johnson did submit a communication specific to the Kauaula Stream studies.
And I know Member Johnson provided us with, I believe, a copy of an e-mail from
Ms. Lucienne deNaie. So, the Chair will state that. . .I know on the, on the top it's gonna
be ... (inaudible) . .. that it's not received by the Chair, but just to be clear on this, the
Chair is just requesting that we get something from the USGS, I think was the request,
and something in writing stating that they're acknowledging a role in this and the Federal
grant monies that's stated by Ms. deNaie in her note. So, Ms. Johnson, I provide you
with the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And I am in the process of getting that from
Mr. Gingerich, but I asked Ms. deNaie in the interim, because I was not able to contact
him directly...to at least put something in writing regarding their conversation. I have
no problem if Members want to put in a proviso that states provided that there is a role
for, you know, or an acceptance of this project by US Geological Survey. 1. ..just simply
felt that it was important to move forward. And of course Mr. Gingerich, if you read
.. .(laughter) . .. I guess very carefully.. .in Ms. deNaie's description, I think that at the
point in time in which he has formally asked and formally requested... because right now
this is not formally accepted by the Council, that is when, I believe, they could actually
issue a formal response. So I just want Members to know that whatever he gives will
more than likely be similar... along the lines that it will be probably an informal
response.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: --the issue is on the floor. And, again, from our discussions, we were just
trying to get a handle and having written information acknowledging the, the role that
USGS and, or any other groups that would play--similar to what we did with Na Wai Eha
stream studies. Any comments in this area? It is, the, the funding is there-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --Members, so it's not like we're pulling it-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: --but it is there and the Chair will only ask that we get information and we
can...well, I leave it to the body's decision at this point since we're in adjustments areas.
Member Anderson, you had comments?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I'm fully in support of this and the,
the ... the e-mail that we received have some very encouraging and discouraging
.. . {laughter}. " information in it both. And I would just point out that they,
they've ...USGS is wrapping up their draft on the Central Maui ... Groundwater Study
and, and... that they're saying by early 2007, if requested, they could put their efforts
towards Kauaula Stream studies. One of the disturbing ...bits of information in here is
that there ... the owners of.. .I guess West Maui Land Company have been discussing the
possibility of a hydro-electric plant on Kauaula Stream. So I think we need to move
forward and establish instream flows for this stream before that happens. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Any additional questions or remarks regarding the, the
paperwork that we're requesting, Members?
... Okay, hearing none, Member Johnson, all we ask that we can just get some formal
response from ... from the USGA [sic] rep, USGS representative acknowledging, you
know, that they, they...will have use for and will partner up with the County in this
regard.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I am ... as of ... (laughter) . .. you know, since this
whole thing came up ... the request is made of Ms. deNaie to assist me, and then I am
further following up to make certain that there's a direct communication with us from
Mr. Gingerich of USGS. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, the Chair has no other... adjustments to discuss with
you, as well as the proviso list has been completed. So before we move on to, Members,
taking any actions on the resolutions and the bills, the Chair will open the floor if there
are requests for additional considerations on adjustments.
And I'll recognize
Member Johnson, and then Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and mine comes as a result of a late-night
... (laughter). .. conversation with Mr. Keith Regan.
And on Page 11-4 of
our...Program Budget, and I also believe it's .. .I'll get the page number in our
details .. .I believe it is on Page 9-3 of the Details. There is a Clerk III Typist [sic} which
the Administration has listed as an LTA. So this is not something that the Council did.
But Mr. Regan has requested for the consideration of the body that this not be shown as
an LTA in the original submittaL And I guess upon further review with Personnel
Services of the difficulty in filling these types of positions with LT A, he would
respectfully request reconsideration of having that not be an LTA. Ifwe wanted to make
any other adjustments, I'm not sure of the exact number of months in this particular
request, but that is a request being made ... based on my conversation with Mr. Regan.
And he apologizes that, you know, this has come at a.. .late submission. But I guess he
had so many other things to focus on, this was an oversight on their part, and he realizes
that it's not the Council's fault. It is their. .. their difficulty, I guess, in filling this
position. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, as a reference point, you have in your Details, on
Page 9-3, there is a Clerk Typist III being shown and proposed as a, as an LTA.
. . . Thus, the, the issue that's being brought forward by Member Johnson. And
Member Johnson, your request is for this body to consider making it a permanent versus
anLTA?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and then leaving up to the body how many months it
will be funded for. Because that was the only information that I did not have.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the request.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Any questions or comments regarding, or discussion regarding the request
for consideration? Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, 9-3 in the Budget Details?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct. Under the Managing Director's office, the second listing, Clerk
Typist III currently shows this EP count as an LTA.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I see. Okay.
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CHAIR KANE: And the request is to move that to permanent status. Member Johnson is
bringing this forward on behalf of the Managing Director's office.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Is this is a current vacancy, Member Johnson-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-CHAIR KANE: --to your knowledge?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: To my knowledge, it is a current vacancy because that's
where they're having difficulty, I guess, in filling positions of this type. But in my
conversation with Mr. Regan, I think that after visiting further with Personnel Services,
they explained the difficulty in filling anything along the lines when we're dealing with
LTAs. If the Budget Director .. . (laughter) . .. has any further information, I don't
know that he does, but ...
CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Ginoza, do you have any information?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chairman, no, I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman-CHAIR KANE: --Members-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh ...
CHAIR KANE: --any-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: --you have this opportunity to have questions or comments regarding this
proposal, otherwise, your Chair will put forward the request on Member Johnson's
behalf.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Where did it go?
CHAIR KANE: ... Okay. Seeing nobody... asking for additional question or comment,
Members, are there any objections to moving this to a permanent position?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, hearing none ... we have no objections, this will move
forward as a permanent position.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The 300 from here-CHAIR KANE: The only thing we ask, Member Johnson, and we'll have staff as, through
Mr. Ginoza, perhaps, is if we can have written... a written documation [sic}
documentation that the Managing Director is making this request.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: And not to question you, Member Johnson-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --but because this is an Administrative request, we'd like to get that in writing,
please.
MR. GINOZA: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, the floor is open. Are there other adjustments that you'd like to
discuss?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... Mr. Chairman-CHAIR KANE: And before we move in to any type of voting, Members, on resolutions and
bills, we'd like to take care of any potential adjustments, and then we're gonna recess to
make those adjustments before we do any of the voting.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members? So, again, just information. Member Tavares, thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, before we leave that area of the overlay
districts and all of that thing-CHAIR KANE: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --on Page 16 ...
CHAIR KANE: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... I think because we've put provisos in there to include the
community groups, that perhaps we should look at Line 740, the first line on the
Molokai Traditional Use Overlay District, and incorporate similar language for
Molokai. And I would defer to our. .. Mr. Mateo, regarding, regarding this, if it was
intended for a community group to work on this or if it was intended for a professional
consultant to work on this.
CHAIR KANE: Member Mateo-COUNCILMEMBERMATEO: Chairman, thank-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --you prepared to respond?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. It was intended, it was
intended for a professional group to assist, primarily...the group would be secured by the
Department-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --because this particular community group does not have the
so-called expertise in trying to, to deal with ...meeting the, meeting their expectations
from the request itself. So it came with a commitment from the Department to, to assist
them in moving their request through. So at this particular point, I don't really see a
relevance in doing a proviso with it because this particular group has been working with
the Planning Department for the last several months. And I believe the requirement and
expectation is already down, down pat, and the Department just needs now to move
forward with the appropriate funding.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you for that information. And, and... and it can, and
just stay this way. I just didn't want it to be an oversight on the Committee's part ... to

- 32-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Couucil of the County ofMaui

May 3, 2006

not change everything if, if it was appropriate.
statements.

But I thank Mr. Mateo for those

CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional requests, Members?
· .. Member Anderson, don't be shy.
ALL: ... {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I feel like the kid in school with all the questions
· . . {laughter} . .. to the teacher while everybody else has got the answers. You know, we
made a... a 11 th-hour change on Friday.. .I think it was more like a 1 a.m. change, and I
just want some clarification if the Members would indulge me.
· .. And I'm sorry I haven't had a chance to match up Friday's Exhibit with today's
Exhibit. But I will just. .. reiterate what happened and, and where I have a concern, and
hopefully Mr. Hokama can help us out with this, so we get it on the record and everyone
is clear as to what happened.
· .. Uh... we took, on Page 27--sorry, Members, this, I'm going from Friday's Exhibit.
This was the Bikeway Fund, Countywide.
· .. And.. .I don't see that we have that anymore ... {laughter} . .. 28,29-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... {inaudible} . .. 1361.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: 1361. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Okay.
· .. There was appropriated 300,000 dollars in the Bikeway Fund... Countywide for the
Bikeway Program. And we were told by Mr. Krueger, from the Department, that a
portion of this money was to be used for reconfiguring the intersections on the
North-South Collector Road.
· .. Member Hokama had a problem with that because he felt that there should be change
orders and that if this was an expansion of the North-South Collector Road project ...
· . . you know, there should be ... some kind of change order to verify that.
Urn ... however, and so therefore what happened, and this whole Committee concurred,
was that 300,000 from the Bikeway Program was transferred to the Baldwin Park
Bikeway Program, and then an additional--which was already at 800,000. I am so
confused with this. We took 300,000 and added it there, and then we took money out of
the Baldwin Park Bikeway and put it into Countywide Roadway. So basically, the end
result, Members, is on Page 28 of your current ...
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· .. your current Exhibit. There, there is, on Line 1360, there's 300,000 dollars for the
Baldwin Park Bikeway, in addition to the 500,000 dollars on Page 29, Line 1380, for the
Baldwin Park Bikeway--giving the Baldwin Park Bikeway 800,000 dollars as was
originally appropriated in the Budget from the Mayor. And so the 300,000 for
Countywide Bikeway.. .it's my understanding, has now been added into
Line 13 ... County, Countywide Road Improvements. Line 1347, sorry, Members, which
has an increase ...
· .. from ... 1.180 to 2.096 with specific provisos. So my concern, Members, and I did
speak to Mr. Krueger about this ...he said that the 300,000 originally in the Countywide
Bikeway Program ... only a portion of that would, would have been used once the design
is finalized for those intersections where the bikeway has to be reconfigured, that only a
portion of the original 300,000 would have been used towards that construction, of which
80 percent of the construction comes from Federal funds. So only 20 percent comes from
County funds within this 300,000. He could not give me a figure because the design is
not finalized yet. But that he did ...
· .. appreciate having the 300,000 in Countywide Bikeway because that gives him
flexibility over the next year to use that funding to assist other ongoing bikeway projects,
such as Waipuilani, Baldwin Avenue, and whatnot. So my concern, of course, is that
there's going to be adequate funding to move forward with the construction of the
bikeway along the North-South Collector Road. And so that's why I brought up this
concern. And I further research it, researched it with Mr. Krueger. And I have discussed
it with Chair Hokama, so .. .if he would like to add further clarification to this and any
reassure, reassurance he might .. .(laughter) . .. be able to give me on the record that the
funding will be there as needed, I would appreciate that.
CHAIR KANE: . . , Any questions or comments?
respond at this time?

Member Hokama... are you ... able to

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: " .(laughter) . .. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and ... and Members.
And thank you, Ms. Anderson, for. .. your question. Uh ...
· . . as we can recall, Mr. Chairman, it was interesting that from the Department, we
had ... different understandings of how that Countywide Parkway [sic}, Bikeway Fund
was gonna be utilized. You know, the Director, I thought, gave ... his response, I
thought, was ...
· .. very accurate of how I looked at it, too. And then to find out, you know, there was
a ... you know, a departmental or divisional plan to at least some of it for the North-South
Collector Road project. That is a standalone project, Mr. Chair, a very large project. We
all know. It's taken many years to just come to this point. I find it interesting that the
Division would prefer not to come to us for specific additional funding to get this project
for completion and give us a status report of their challenges, their additional
requirements, their adjustments to time schedule, and what it will take to reach the
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completion. Instead, we pulling teeth to find out they wanna use Countywide funds to do
supplemental funding for this big project.
· .. You and I both know there's many ways for them to come back to Committee to get
additional funding. You know, they can ask Mr. Ginoza ... (laughter) . .. draft a bond
ordinance for the increase authorization...which is one example we can do today. We
can, you know, increase bond again, keep it, authorization and force them to come and
give us a status report before we give 'em bond money. But as you notice, Members, on
Page 28, we did increase Countywide Road Improvement kitty--1347, the Line, from
1.18 million to about 2.1 million.
· .. If the information given to Ms. Anderson is quite accurate, I believe there's sufficient
funds for them to take from this pot, through change orders, and then also come to us for
a authorization for the specific North-South Collector Road. You know, there's many
ways to, to do this, Mr. Chairman. And the Members and you are aware we have various
funding options of how, how to get this done. I still believe that the option we have
currently on Exhibit 1 as of 5/3, May 3rd , this morning .. .is still very doable, very
workable. And I would prefer the Division {sicJofPublic Works to come back to us with
one specific North-South Collector request for additional funds if that is what it takes to
get it completed, and explain to us this is what happened. And I think we have shown
reasonableness, we've shown support.
· .. And I think that's the right way to do it, Members. Again, until we pulled the teeth
out, we didn't find out that was the use of this Countywide funds. I thought it was part of
some improvements on Baldwin Avenue ... some other areas in the County. And so for
me, Chairman, you know, that's my comments. Again, I'm part of this Committee, and
you know, I'll allow, continue to support what the CommiUee makes its final decision on.
But I still believe, and I would ask Ms. Anderson that I would like to hold the
Division's ... feet accountable. And I think one way is to do it this way. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional comments, Members? Member Johnson, followed
by Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I had a question. And this would probably be of
Ms. Anderson because I know that sometimes when we're getting Federal funds, if
there's a time-line based on potential expiration of any Federal funding that may be tied
into this Budget request. You know, in, in other words, it may be that there's a time
crunch and that to go through ordinary mechanisms might be difficult. So I just wanna
find out ifthere's any knowledge if that is an issue with regard to timing.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond to the question?
MR. GINOZA: I, I'm sorry, I wasn't paying attention. I was trying to look at a technical issue-CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, why don't you go ahead and restate your--
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The-MR. GINOZA: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --the, the question would be either for Ms. Anderson or for
Mr. Ginoza, if he knows. And many times when there's Federal funding involved,
there's a drop-dead date by which those funds have to be actually utilized. And so with
regard to the commentary that Ms. Anderson made about the use or potential use for
those areas of the bikeway that intersect with the North-South Collector Road, I just
wondered if there was any time consideration, which is why the request might be made
by the Department--to approach it this way, because they don't have time to go through,
maybe a little bit more lengthy budget process.
MR. GINOZA: I don't know the answer with respect to the deadline. But I know that, you
know, the Countywide CIP funds are sometimes used for .. .I guess, excess
con ... contract amounts that's, you know, related to other projects. In other words, you
know, if there's an overrun on costs on some other projects, they may use some of the
Countywide funds for that purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I was just going to ... say that I think ... (end of tape,
start 2B). .. saying is, is ...well taken. I think we've run into this similar, a similar
situation with the Countywide Parks funds and that we, our intention might not have been
for the way some of those monies were used with having ... using it to make up the
differences between what an amount was for a, for a particular project and the bid
amount. I don't ...
. . . I don't think that that's what our intention was when we created these Countywide
funds. They were to do .. .like in this case, bikeway projects, not as a supplement to an
existing contract. And I see it as a way to ... basically circumvent the system or the, the
procedure and the accountability. I would like us to work on some kind of procedure
that's maybe a little faster with having some of these cost or bid overruns--is what it is, I
think mostly--and some, some change orders or things like that in different CIP projects.
But there should be a mechanism for that to be expeditiously handled through the Council
so that we're ...we're aware of how the taxpayers' dollars are being spent.
... Unless we want to create a fund that'll be for bid and cost overruns ... and call it what
it is and not disguise it as something else. That's just my comments, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional comments? Member Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
· .. You know, I don't think, I don't think there's any intention here to hide anything.
When I spoke with Mr. Krueger on this, he made it clear that he could not give a figure
because the design has not been done yet. They're still working on the design, and that
he would appreciate having the funding in the Countywide Bikeway Fund so that as other
projects are nearing completion, he can use the money in this fund to supplement those
projects and that he would, he would .. .(laughter) . .. he would come to us ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: '" with a change order for. .. the construction of the
bikeway along North-South Collector Road. Now I, I can understand the Members
concerns because I have that same concern, too--we should know where the money's
going specifically. So ...
... you know ...
· .. I guess I'm just gonna say in, in ... the spirit of cooperation and ... and knowing that
this Council has always supported the North-South Collector Road ... and if the
Department cannot find the funds they need to take care of the change order--mind you
we're paying 20 percent and, and just to answer Ms. Johnson's question, there is not a
pressing time frame on the Federal funding. It's just there for the construction and they
will have to do a change order. But if there's not sufficient funding under Countywide
Road Improvements, which does include the option for use of bike paths, that the
Department comes back and gives the, the Council a budget supplemental so that we can,
you know, work forward with this. But ...
· .. you know, my concern is that. .. that we're taking away the flexibility for other
bikeway programs throughout the County. And we don't know what that is. So I guess
the Department will just have to come back to us and ask specifically for the funds they
need for each project. And I have no problem with that, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Urn ...with respect to the suggestion made by
Councilmember Tavares, I wonder if this would be one of the areas and, and if you would
be looking at a proviso? Because I understand Councilmember Anderson's concern, but
that. . .if we proviso this in such a way to say prior to the release of any monies that were
utilized to complete . .. a bikeway project, provided ... that that information would be
disclosed to the Budget Committee or to the Council. 'Cause I think that's what you're
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trying to achieve--is some sort of tracking and accountability for the use of the money so
that we know what the total cost is for a specific project. And that's where I think we all
have a great deal of difficult in just tracking how much these things cost. Because even
when we make budget amendments, sometimes I personally lose track of how much
money we actually do spend on this. So that might be another approach, Mr. Chair--to
consider some type of a proviso, giving the flexibility but also requiring the
accountability prior to the disbursement or at least reporting if there have been any
monies utilized. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Any additional questions or comments?
Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one... quick .. .(laughter) . .. comment, Chair. In our
December 31 st, '05 Quarterly Report, the Countywide Bikeway Fund ... of
300,000--traditionally that's what we've been putting in. The Countywide Bikeway Fund
is 300,000 every year.
· .. It lapsed.

· .. Or at least it's unappropriated as of December 31 st from last year. So ...
· .. so I think that I can support Mr. Hokama's direction on this and let them corne back
to us. I don't think there'll be any problem ... getting the money, just so we know how
much it is and where it's going.
CHAIR KANE: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --thank you very much. Members, there's one item that I'd like to ask for your
consideration--back to Page 16 on the Hana Traditional Use Overlay District. And,
Members, it's been brought to my attention to ask. . .if the Members would prefer to see
this, instead of being a proviso, that it would be similar to what we did with the Kihei one
and just making it one sentence that would read: grant to community-based organization
with knowledge in cultural resources of the area to develop Hana Traditional Use
Overlay District.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objection.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, any objections to that request?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, thank you very much.
· .. Are there any other requests for consideration?
· .. Seeing none, Members, just so you know what we're gonna be put to task with, we
have a total of two resolutions and a total of ten bills to act on. The Staff is asking for
some time to make all the adjustments prior to taking any type of votes for the
Committee--and that doesn't include, we have filings as well. The Chair is aware of the
time. So we can take ...the Chair would request that we take about 40 minutes so that we
would come back at about 11 :25 or 11 :30, Members, and we, then we can go through the
formalities of adopting or for recommendation to the full Council the resolutions, bills,
and the filing actions.
· .. And that would take us to around lunch time, Members. So we would be able to
adjourn by then. Or...you know, there's other options as well. But the Chair would
recommend that we come back at about 11 :30, Members, so we take about 40, 45
minutes. Are there any objections to coming back at 11 :30 to take care of the
recommendations of the resolutions, bills, and filings?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Members, 11:30? We'll take care of our business when we get back and then
we can adjourn this meeting. Okay, Members, hearing no objections, time now is
1l :47 [sic], we will recess this meeting until 11:30. The Committee stands in recess
.. .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:463.m.

RECONVENE:

11:383.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. , (gavel). .. The Committee on Budget and Finance is now reconvened.
Thank you, Members, for that break.
... For the record, all Members are present this morning for our consideration of the
recommendations of your Chair to move the various bills and ordinance... excuse me,
bills, ordinances, and resolutions out of Committee. But before we do that, the Chair will
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ask for one final opportunity by the Members, if there are any adjustments that need to be
made? Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. During the break, I had an
opportunity to chat with your Staff. And regarding Page 8, Line Number 371, this is
in.. .in relationship to the Project Graduation Programs for Maui and Lanai. I'm
suggesting that the title be changed to grants and disbursements for Project Graduation
Programs for Maui and Lanai. So I don't know if you're taking it as motions or not,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: On this one, we should. So why don't you go ahead and make a motion-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I move that we change the title of Item Number 33, listed on
Line 371 on Page 8... change the title so that it reads: grants and disbursements for
Project Graduation Programs for Maui and Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Second.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, it's been moved and seconded by Members Tavares and Anderson to
amend the title on Line 371 of Exhibit 1, Page 8... to read: grants and disbursements for
Project Graduation Programs for Maui and Lanai. Is that correct, Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That is correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. You have the floor. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. And basically what we're doing is adding
"disbursements" and deleting "to the Volunteer Center" because we wouldn't do a grant
to the Volunteer Center, they're already a program in the County... Department of
Housing and Human Concerns. They would most likely be administering these grants,
but it is not a grant to them. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further discussion, Members, on this item?
... Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous. Thank you.

- 40 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 3, 2006

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE.

CHAIR KANE: Members, any other adjustments before we proceed with the recommendations
of your Chair?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask for, I move ...move ... for reconsideration on Line 438,
Page 10.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Okay.
. . . In this case, I believe because we did not vote . .. Members, the Chair will recognize
Member Hokama because it did go without objections ... but the Chair would like to
recognize Member Hokama because I think at that time there was a distraction on the
floor, and so I wanna provide him that opportunity. Without objections, Members, if we
can bring this discussion back to the floor regarding the equivalent personnel, the LTA to
permanent question that was posed. Are there any objections to bringing that to the floor,
Members?

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Member Hokama, we'll go ahead and deal with it that way.
You have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank, thank you very much for your ... ruling on, on this
matter, and, and Members. Members, you know, for those that can recall when
we ... first started considering expansion of this Department. .. few years ago we were
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asked to create a First Assistant to the Managing Director, as well as a Chief Technology
Officer. Council eliminated those positions, and yet here, it's back in our budget again.
And we did provide, I believe, at that point in time, an LT A regarding ...
· . . an administrative position, whether it was, it's called Executive Assistant or First
Assistant to the Managing Director. .. at the beginning of this Administration. Obviously,
as an administrative tool, they took that position and turned it around, and now we see it
as a Clerk Typist III.
· .. We're also aware, Mr. Chairman and Members, that we have, currently, an employee
that has return rights to this Department. .. that agreed to be transferred to another portion
of the County where she is currently running a very good Federal program on the
County's behalf. I'm not sure that moving this LTA to permanent continues to allow that
employee with an opportunity of the return rights that is granted to ... that employee, as
well as at this point in time ...to the possibly change of Administrations ... that I would
prefer to have the next. .. Administration to be able to have the opportunity to consider
how they wanna move this office or this Department forward, Mr. Chairman. I can live
with keeping it in the current LTA position that was submitted by the Administration
originally. I see no ...
· .. important need to transfer this to a Civil Service position at this time.
· .. So I would ask the Members to maintain what was proposed.
· .. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because the Budget Director did request, I, I gather from
Mr. Regan, the justification and the request, because this was originally an LT A that was
proposed, I would just ask if Mr. Ginoza has any response or I guess any opportunity for
the Managing Director to comment on this particular item.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: As I understand it, there's a response that was sent to Council immediately after
the request was made. So if your Staff could check if the response was received?
CHAIR KANE: And that request that was made about an hour ago, are you talking about?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.

- 42-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 3, 2006

CHAIR KANE: Okay. So it's not something that would be here in the Chamber now, but it was
forwarded downstairs? If, you don't recall it got sent to?
MR. GINOZA: I believe it got sent to the regular processing of our transmittals.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So it's not, Members, it's not in front of us right now. It probably went
downstairs, got accepted through Office of Council Services and ... went through our
normal process of receiving documentation. So, Member Johnson, to answer your
question, we don't have that written request before the body right now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And I'm, I'm reluctant, you know, to, I guess ... speak
because I can't speak on behalf of the Administration, of course. Because I'm just
making a request that was brought to my attention as to the difficulty in filling that
position. I have no idea about the issues that Mr. Hokama has raised with regard to any
person's right to return. I would, I guess, have to defer to either Mr. Ginoza or
Ms. Traci Fujita Villarosa because I don't know what that does, you know, to that
particular opening--just keeping it there. So before .. .I think .. .(laughter) . .. at least
from my perspective, I would like to have some kind of comment in that regard.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair, I do have a copy of. .. such a response. So I, I don't know the
procedure, whether this is acceptable in terms of a response for the floor at this time.
CHAIR KANE: Members, are, are there any objections to allowing Mr. Ginoza to read the
response?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objection.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. That way we can dispense with going downstairs and taking a recess.
Mr. Ginoza, thank you.
MR. GINOZA: ... Mr. Chair it, it states: we humbly request your consideration to remove the
Limited Term Appointment designation for Position MD-013 [sic], Clerk Typist III
within our Department. We extend our sincerest apologies to the Committee for not
including this request in our original submittal. The Department has been attempting to
fill this position over the past many months, however, applicants are hesitant to accept the
position due to its temporary nature. Removing the designation will eliminate this
hurdle, and we are confident that a... confident of our ability to fill this vacancy quickly.
Thank you for your consideration, and we look forward to the Committee's support in
removing the LTA designation from the position. Please do not hesitate to contact our
office if there are any additional questions or concerns regarding this request. Signed by
Managing Director.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and because of the very last comment and also because
of the discussion that we're having right now with regard to the potential that there may
have been a person who would be wanting to return to this position, and thus the request
to keep it at LTA, I would like to at least be able, if the Managing Director is available, to
ask him directly what, you know, I guess what the justification is, and then also if he
knows if there is a specific individual that was returning. I'm not sure if the body wants
to go that route, but I, I just have some concerns, Mr. Chair, in trying to provide the
maximum amount of flexibility because I really believe at this point in time from my
understanding... and particularly because we cut out the Call Center, that this position
should be filled so that there is someone else just to be able to field many of the requests
that come in for service. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson.
Member Tavares?

Additional comments in this area?

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair. Perhaps our Personnel Services Director
can offer some comments regarding these positions and how ... they came about and got
redescribed and whatever that happened in that, in... scenario as has been pointed out to
us by Mr. Hokama. If there's a desire to get her comments, you know, I would have no
objection to her coming down.
CHAIR KANE: Members, are there any objections to having Ms. Lynn Krieg, the Director for
the Personnel Services-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: --come forward?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Krieg, if you could, please, we'd appreciate your presence.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Krieg approached the floor.

CHAIR KANE: ... If you'd like to, if. .. you don't want to, it's your choice, but you're being
requested to provide comment. And all I would ask is that the comments be restricted to
this specific area and not to delve into other areas of the Budget request .
. . . Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. You were hearing some of the discussion
regarding this LTA position in the Managing Director's office. And I don't know if you
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can comment regarding how it came about and also the issue of return rights of another
employee to that Department from another Department.
MS. KRIEG: I don't feel comfortable speaking directly, specifically regarding specific positions
and ... and how they came about without. .. going back and actually doing research on
specific positions. I can do some, maybe some explanation regarding the return rights-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MS. KRIEG: ... ofthat particular position.
. . . The, the employee in question does have a signed agreement for return rights. When
she left her position, which was a Civil Service position, she retained return rights when
she took that exempt position in the Mayor's Office.
And right now as
Councilmember Hokama stated, she is running a Federal, federally funded
program... and she does have return rights should that. .. appointment cease. She does
have return rights to as a, if I remember correctly, as the settlement agreement states, to
return to her position or to a comparable position. Now the comparable position can be
in the Managing Director's office or to a position elsewhere in the County.

. . . If I remember correctly. Okay? Uh... as far as this Clerk Typist position is
concerned, it may be this position, it may be another position. Whichever position it is,
the position would have to be reclassified to the level at which... she left.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... Ms. Krieg, do you know what position she left?
MS. KRIEG: She left a position, oh-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Which position it was that she left?
MS. KRIEG: The position number?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Or where was it? In the-MS. KRIEG: Oh-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --MD's office?
MS. KRIEG: Okay, well, when she left, it was a position in the Managing Director's office, and
it was, if I remember correctly again, it was classified as an Executive Assistant.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... Which was a Civil Service position?
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MS. KRIEG: It was a Civil Service position. All the positions in the Managing Director's office
are Civil Service positions, except for the First Assistant.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay .
. . . Well, thank you for that information.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Hokama, any additional questions in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Regarding the return rights, Ms. Krieg, if there is no position to
redescribe, we are required to create a position for this employee ... for, by that
agreement?
MS. KRIEG: We would not be able to create one because ofthe EP restriction.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So how do we provide-MS. KRIEG: We would have to bump.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --a return right ...
MS. KRIEG: She would have bumping rights.
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Okay.
. . . Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions in this area, Members? Again, we need to stay-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --on this area, yeah? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just in general with regard to the LTA designation in filling,
let's say, this particular position that we're talking about. What are the challenges in
filling that type of position?
NOTE:

Silence.

MS. KRIEG: ... The observation made by the Managing Director as far as difficulty in filling
the position because it is limited term, is accurate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right.
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MS. KRIEG: We are having difficulty in filling limited term positions, as well as part-time
positions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions for our Director?
... And, Director, forgive me, if you can, please just identify yourself for the record and
your position. Thank you.
MS. KRIEG: Lynn Krieg, Director of Personnel Services.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Director. And thank you for your presence this morning. We
appreciate your comments. Okay, Members, are there any other questions or comments?
Member Hokama has asked us to consider this position. The ...the proposal in the
Mayor's budget was for an LTA. This body did, without objections, in that process,
agreed to move it to a permanent.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Member Hokama, without objections, has asked that it be brought back forward
for the question. Members, the Chair will make a ruling that we look at it from its
original proposal status as an LTA. .. and that in this case because Member Hokama is
asking that it be retained there ... that if there is a movement to have it put from an LTA
to a permanent status, that we take a procedural step as far as voting on this item. So the
Chair will accept a motion to do something other than what Member Hokama is
requesting. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair, I move that the Clerk III position be moved
from an LTA to a permanent position for six months.
CHAIR KANE: Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Second for discussion.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. It's been moved and seconded by Members Johnson and Anderson.
We '11 make an adjustment, Members, to, from LTA to permanent, and that the pay would
be for six months. And Mr. Taguchi, before I relinquish the floor, Member Johnson, any
comments? I know we may have to make adjustments, we'll deal with it once the vote is
taken. Thank you. Member Johnson, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and the only reason that I'm moving it to six months is
because, obviously, it's a position that has no one in it right now. There is difficulty in
recruiting overall in the County, and I feel that it is a fair request given that we are having
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difficulty overall filling LTAs, part-time posItIOns. And personally...with all due
respect, this is the Administration that is requesting this change. And I believe we should
try, in my personal opinion, to accommodate that request to enable them to provide the
services that we have charged them with doing. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Johnson. Any additional discussion, Members, on this
motion on the floor?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Seeing none, Members, all in favor signify by saying "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR KANE: Db... Members, I hear-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Two-CHAIR KANE: --two "ayes"? Was there a third "aye"?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Who were the two?
CHAIR KANE: Two "ayes": Member Anderson and Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'll vote "aye" on that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And Members Tavares, "aye". We have three "ayes", six "noes".
Members, the motion fails.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, and Tavares.

NOES:

Councilmembers
Carroll,
Mateo,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.
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EXC.:

None.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, so no need for adjustment on that, Members, as far as figures.
Member Johnson, thank you, again-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --for bringing that forward.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Member Hokama, thank you.
. . . Members, are there any other adjustments being requested at this time before we
proceed with the recommendations of your Chair for the Committee's actions?
... Hearing none, Members ...we are moving forward. Your Chair's recommendation
will first be to act on the following resolutions. First, we have a proposed resolution
entitled: adopting the fuel tax rates for the County of Maui, effective July 1, 2006. The
purpose of that proposed resolution is to adopt the fuel tax rates in accordance with
Hawaii Revised Statutes Section 243-5 and the Maui County Code Section 3.20.010.
Second, we have a proposed resolution entitled: adjusting the salary of the Supervising
Legislative Analyst in the Office of Council Services. The purpose of the proposed
resolution is to adjust the salary of the Supervising Legislative Analyst in the Office of
Council Services. Members, your recommendation is to act on both. Unless there's a
request for separation, then we can act on the resolutions separately. Your Chair's
recommendation is on the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I move to adopt. . .I move to recommend to Council,
adoption of the two resolutions as stated in your comments.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded, Members Hokama and Carroll, to adopt the
resolutions as stated by your Chair. We are in discussion. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you very much. I'm in support of the two
resolutions. I'll just make quick. .. some quick comments. The main change in the fuel
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tax resolution, Mr. Chainnan, of course, is the reduction from 18 to 16 cents for the
County's fuel tax rates. Your Committee, after ... (laughter) . .. much debate and .. .I can
verify that every Member, you know, deliberated very hard on this matter, there's pros
and cons on both sides of the, of the coin, but we are recommending a two cents
reduction as the County of Maui responds to our citizenry. Second, is just my comment.
I will say I have reservations about the second resolution. Again, as a matter ... (end of
tape, start 3A) . .. Chair, to the, our Chainnan, I'm happy to ask you to move this forward
to the Council. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Hokama. Discussion, Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Members, the Chair's gonna take this opportunity at the
Committee level to comment on the, first, regarding the resolution on the proposed rates
for the fuel tax. Members, your Chair will be supporting this and, specifically, I wauna
get. .. my comments on record stating that ...
. . . although prices are at close to 4 dollars a gallon now, I think it's important that the
public understand that the County has control of 0 to 18 cents of that 4 dollars a gallon.
And unfortunately, we do not have the control, the market has the control, and other
forces outside of the County's scope. And because of that 18 cents, that's where our, my
comments are gonna be directed. And as stated in the discussion that Member Hokama
talked about that we all had, I just wanted to reiterate and continue to stand on the
position that I, as your Chair, as one of nine members of this Committee, stated on the,
during the other night. So I won't get back into that, but I just wanted to make public that
the County has control of 18 cents. Not 4 dollars. Not 3.66 cents, but a portion of that, a
very small portion. And so the comments that were made had to do with the context of
our control, what we have control over. So I just wanted to leave it at that, Members.
Any final comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: MemberMolina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. I concur with that statement. And,
you know, I guess a lot of people have the impression that we sometimes have a bigger, I
guess, involvement with the cost of gas, but it's really just the fuel tax. But you know,
with the never ending increases of the cost of fuel, I think this body has a rare opportunity
to provide a little relief for our citizens. And you know, this proposed fuel tax reduction,
I see it as putting money back into the pockets of our citizens to either save or spend in
other facets of our community. I think the reduction can make a difference when it
comes to delaying potential increases for the cost of the delivery of goods and services.
As you know, the delivery... company has to raise their, their fees for services to the
retailer. Of course, that will be eventually passed on to the consumer. So at least in that
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area, our consumers can save a little money. So I support this resolution as well as the
second ...resolution as well, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any final questions or discussion?
· .. Hearing none, Members, all in favor signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed?
· .. Let the record show it's unanimous on both resolutions, Members.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolutions.

CHAIR KANE: It passes on to the full Council for its consideration. Thank you. Members,
moving on to the bills. We have a total, Members, of ten bills. And your Chair will read
through the titles of each and give you a... very brief purpose of the bills' intent. I will
also make note of two adjustments that I think are important to highlight. And, again,
that would be brief. First, Members, we have a proposed bill entitled: a bill for an
ordinance amending Section 2.44.015, Maui County Code, relating to salaries of deputy
corporation counsel and deputies prosecuting attorney. The purpose of the proposed bill
is to adjust the pay plan for the deputies corporation counsel and deputies prosecuting
attorney. Your second bill is a draft bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance amending
Section 2.08.060, Maui County Code, relating to salaries of personnel in the Office of
Council Services and other Council staff. The purpose of the draft bill is to revise the
salaries in the Office of Council Services. The third bill is a draft bill entitled: a bill for
an ordinance repealing Chapter 5.04, Maui County Code, pertaining to ... dancehalls.
The purpose of the draft bill is to repeal Chapter 5.04, Maui County Code.
· .. Your fourth bill is a proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance to amend Title 3,
Maui County Code, pertaining to the collection of fares for public transit services. The
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purpose of the proposed bill is to authorize the collection of fares for public transit
services in an amount to be established in the annual budget. Bill Number 5, a draft bill
entitled: a bill for an ordinance relating to the plan review, permit processing, and
inspection revolving fund. The purpose of the draft bill is to clarify that rent payments
and fixtures may be funded by fees collected and deposited in the Plan Review, Permit
Processing, and Inspection Revolving Fund. Bill Number 6, a draft bill entitled: a bill
for an ordinance amending Section 3.48.050, Maui County Code, pertaining to real
property tax home exemption. The purpose of the draft bill is to amend the home
exemption. Members, your Chair will also note that the draft bill for the homeowner
exemption has been revised to reflect the increase of 100,000 dollars. Bill Number 7, a
revised proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance relating to the ...to the Capital
Program for the Fiscal Year ending June 30 th , 2007, with a report entitled "County of
Maui, Capital Improvement Projects Report, as of December 31,2005", and Appendix B.
The purpose of the revised proposed bill is to set forth the Capital Program for Fiscal
Year 2007 and for Fiscal Year 2007 through 2012. The report is a list of all pending
capital improvement projects and appropriations as of December 31, 2005. And
Appendix B is the proposed Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2007 through
2012. Members, your 8th bill is a revised proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance
authorizing the issuance of 24,605,000 dollars aggregate principal amount of general
obligation bonds to the County of Maui for the purpose of providing funds to pay all or a
part of the cost of appropriations for public improvements of and for the County of Maui,
fixing the form, denominations and certain other features of such bonds, and providing
for their sale, authorizing the Director of Finance to determine certain details of the
bonds, authorizing the issuance and sale of the like principle amount of general obligation
bond anticipation notes in anticipation of the issuance and sale of such bonds, and
providing for other actions related to the issuance, sale, and delivery of said bonds. The
purpose of the revised proposed bill is to authorize the issuance of general obligation
bonds for various capital improvement projects. And, Members, your Chair will note that
the bond authorization bill does not include the 7 million dollars for the acquisition of the
Wailuku Water Company watershed and related assets .
. . . Yes. Members, on Number 9, a proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance
determining that part of the proceeds of general obligation bonds of the County of Maui
heretofore issued is in excess of the amounts required for the purposes for which such
bonds were initially issued, or mayor should not be applied to those purposes, and
directing to other public improvements or authorized purposes of the County of Maui.
The purpose of the proposed bill is to reauthorize the use ... use of lapsed bond proceeds
for various capital improvement projects. And finally, Members, Bill Number lOis a
revised proposed bill entitled: a bill for an ordinance relating to the operating budget for
the County of Maui for the Fiscal Year July 1,2006 to June 30th , 2007, with Appendices
A and B. The purpose of the revised proposed bill is to appropriate estimated revenues
for the operating and capital improvement budget. Incorporated within the proposed bill
are Appendix A, which lists grant revenues and special purpose revenues; and
Appendix B, which is the schedule of rates, fees, and assessments. Members, your
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Chair's recommendation is to approve those bills and move forward for the full Council
for their consid, for its consideration .
. . . Entertaining a motion, Members.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I would move that all ten bills as read by you...be
recommended to Council for passage on first reading and be ordered to print.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR KANE: Moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Carroll to ... approve or adopt
on this floor to the full Council the approval of bills as read to the Committee.
Member Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I think this .. .is... the evidence ofthe hard work that your
Committee has put forth in the Fiscal Year 2007 budget deliberations. I will state that I
have just reservations on the second bill. I think some of it is housekeeping, which
makes very good sense--particularly the one relating to dancehalls.
CHAIR KANE: ... (laughter) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say that your Committee ...has made some very hard
decisions regarding funding and direction that we want the County to move into. And I
believe, Mr. Chairman, that it is also a reflection of the unique needs of the various
districts in our County, regarding also of the sister islands of Lanai and Molokai. So I
would ask the Members to please support it.
... And I believe if there's adjustments need to be made, that Administration can also, as
it has this year, utilize budget amendments as the vehicle for those adjustments. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Hokama. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I have two ... specific areas of concern.
And... and ...just. .. for the public's purpose who may be watching this, on Bill
Number 8, you...made a comment that this bond authorization bill does not
include ...money set aside for the possible purchase of Wailuku Water Company. And I
would just ask you to clarify that so people understand.
CHAIR KANE: Sure. And actually I'll have Mr. Taguchi, our Staff, clarify that. .. generally
speaking we, they have to come back for the final authorization of that bill. So that way
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it requires them to come back with that status of the situation. But, Mr. Taguchi, if you
can provide comment, please?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, in the Committee's discussion regarding this Wailuku watershed
assets, I believe the intent was that the money is appropriated in the ... proposed Fiscal
Year 2007 Budget, however, the bond authorization would be something that is withheld.
What would occur is that the Administration would come forward when they're ready to
utilize the funds, they would come forward and present a amendment to amend the bond
authorization bill to include the 7 million dollars. And therefore, move forward with the
purchase. And that would allow Council a opportunity to visit the item.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks, I just, I felt it was necessary to clarify that so the
public understands that we did appropriate the money-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --we're just withholding the bond until, until the time
necessary. Then, if! may, Mr. Chair, I did have a concern on ...
· .. item number 3...regarding dancehalls.
· . . Basically, this is a request to totally repeal this Chapter in the County Code.
And ... you know, I guess we don't have dancehalls anymore, so there could be an
argument that it, you know, it, it's strictly a housekeeping measure. However .. .and
because we have not discussed this ... or had any deliberation on it, I have a concern
because it does not just ...
· .. it does not just pertain to dancehalls. It pertains to ... dancing in public places for,
for ...
· .. compensation. And my concern is that is that if we eliminate this entire section of the
County Code, does this now give carte blanche for nightclubs to begin .. .lap dances?
And does this take away the police ... tool to prevent that from happening? And you
know, if, if that's the desire of the body--to allow that kind of activity in our County--I
think we certainly need to have a discussion of it and not just a blanket repeal of. .. of the
entire chapter. So that's my word of caution on that. And myself, I'm not prepared to
vote in favor of this repeal unless I have some assurances that we're not opening up an
avenue ... through unintended consequences of this action.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your remarks, Member Anderson.
discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, I got one.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Member-- 54-
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --Pontanilla, followed by Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Corporation Counsel?

Thank you, Chair.

Maybe some clarification from

CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Your, your Chair is allowing her time-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --to go research that. So that's why I wanted to provide you folks an
opportunity to comment on any of the ten bills. Member Tavares, followed by
Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, regarding the 7 million dollars for the Wailuku
watershed area .. .is that noted in our budget that it's being, that it's authorized but, I
mean, appropriated but not authorized?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is there a proviso or something that's there?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Taguchi?
MR. TAGUCHI: At the current time, we did not put a proviso on the CIP Budget line item. It is
referred to, I guess it would not appear in the bond... authorization bill. So we could
make a notation, if you wish, within the budget. . .line item or under it to note that it is
not authorized in the bond bill.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I think that would be helpful for people reading
the budget later on. And also, are there any other projects where the money is
appropriated but not authorized for the bond?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taguchi?
MR. TAGUCHI: In the current budget proposal, there are, are no other... CIP projects that is
scheduled for bond funding which we have not authorized. So the answer is "no". The
only one that the Committee talked about possibly.. .1imiting or restricting the bond
authorization was, I believe, the morgue, which we have decided to just in... put into this
budget for the 200,000 dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you ...
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CHAIR KANE: This is the appropriate-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... I think, yeah, that would be helpful.
CHAIR KANE: --time to make an amendment if you would like to insert some comment, or
maybe ... Staff can provide us with a recommendation as how we can do it in the cleanest
manner to make a note within the budget of the ... with, withholding of the ... ofthe bond
authorization, Member Tavares. So we'll inquire with Staff as to how we can
move ... proceed with that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Yeah, I, I would, I would leave that up to Staff to figure out
how to word that. .. notation for the bond, for the 7 million dollars.
CHAIR KANE: And before I recognize Staff--Members, because I will be asking you folks at
some point before the adjournment of the meeting to provide for nonsubstantive
changes-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --because we're not changing anything, all we're doing is making a notation,
would the Members object to having that as part of the duties of providing a notation
somewhere or is that too substantive a matter for you folks to ... (laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: . . . and wanna make a specific vote on that as far as an amendment?
Member Hokama, comment on that particular area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. In the past, we've used the committee
report ... to take care of the narrative requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and obviously, you know, we can or I would recommend to
you, Mr. Chairman and the Members that. .. maybe the committee report would be the
better place to place clarity... of Council's policy regarding this specific item,
Mr. Chairman. And I think we can have sufficient. . .language developed that it is very
clear our intention, the direction we're moving, and the steps we're taking to get to the
consideration of a bond authorization. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, I'll solicit any other remarks in this area. And if hearing
none, the Chair will concur with... Mr. Hokama on this, Members. Without objection,
we'll have that noted in the committee report specifically, as far as the body's intent
and...making, taking the steps out so it's clear in, within the committee report.
Member Tavares, any comments on that?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, yeah, thank you. I think that's good to
note it in the committee report. But you know, a lot of the public doesn't see the
committee report, unless they specifically know to look there. So I think that it should be
in the actual. .. ordinance, the budget ordinance. And also it was my understanding that
the Administration doesn't even get the committee report unless they specifically ask for
it. Is that true? Does the committee report go to the, to the Administration, the Budget
committee report?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible). " check.
CHAIR KANE: ... Mr. Taguchi, if you're prepared to respond to the question?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane, I'm not able to respond. I believe that duty would fall to the
County Clerk's Office upon passage in the full Council. But I would-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. TAGUCHI: So I really don't know.
CHAIR KANE: Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, would you know what would it take for the
committee report to be transmitted to the Administration as a official document?
CHAIR KANE: Member Tavares, your Chair is not prepared to respond at this time on, on that
mechanism, whether or not we're creating a mechanism-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --to have that action fulfilled. Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Might ask the, the County Clerk's Office how would be the
best way to make sure that the Administration does get a copy of the committee report.
And actually, they should be distributing it to all of their departments because there are
sections of the committee report that go into a little more detail about how or what the
discussion was regarding certain things. You know, we've had, 1 don't know ... did you
folks already tally the hours we've been in budget? But anyway, whatever those hours
are-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --I mean, it, it's a lot of time that has been spent, you know,
discussing various topics. So if we could find out from the Clerk's Office what would be
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the mechanism to make sure that Administration has a copy, officially, of the
Budget. .. committee report along with all the other stuff?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Tavares. We'll, we'll go ahead.and note that. And the
question remains, Members, before I re-recognize Member Tavares, on the issue of, does
the Committee feel comfortable with Staff including in the other nonsubstantive changes
and adjustments and refinements, that this is something that is providing a specific note
regarding the withholding of the bond? Is that an issue that Members feel comfortable
with allowing Staff to do, or do you want to vote on that? Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, I'm comfortable with the Staff doing it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, are there any objections to having the Staff do that?
Member Anderson on this question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I have no objection as long as ... the additional
changes are pointed out to us so that we know what they are.
CHAIR KANE: Okay... and this is just specific to the withholding of the authorization-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, oh, oh.
CHAIR KANE: --bond. That's the question on the floor right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I thought you meant across the board.
CHAIR KANE: No, no. That's gonna be later.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: I'm gonna get to that part-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (laughter) . .. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --but Ijust wanna incorporate this into that blanket-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: --request that, that we do. Okay, Members, hearing no objections, we're on the
motion on the floor for the ten bills. Member Hokama, additional remarks?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, the, the only question I had for Corporation Counsel on
the comments regarding Bill Number ...
. . . 3?
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· . . If, if the establishment is serving alcohol, then I would assume the Liquor
Commission can promulgate a rule through Hawaii ... {inaudible}. .. Administrative
Procedures Act. .. to take care of concerns regarding quote, lap dancing, unquote.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair. .. there's a separate chapter in the Maui County Code
entitled Adult Entertainment Activity. It's in Chapter 19.85, and it's part of our zoning
regulations. So ...the activity that, that's being discussed right now would be regulated
by this chapter of the Maui County Code. And there is a provision in here that prohibits
liquor from being sold, served, or consumed on the premises where adult entertainment
activity occurs.
· .. So, no, the Liquor Commission would not be able to-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --without amending this. We'd have to, they'd have to propose an
amendment to the-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To the Code.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: --to the Code. Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much for that comments.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Anderson, the reference point of 19.85, does that satisfy
your... your information needs?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: '" Not necessarily. Urn ...
· .. you know, it's two pages long, and adult entertainment--which I have not had a
chance to read ... {laughter} . .. Adult entertainment is defined as activity involving or
resulting in nudity ...
· .. and then it goes on to say, however, nudity which may occur in the overall context of
the hula, sumo, and other cultural or theatrical activities for nudity is an incidental part of
the performance ... you know, blah, blah, blah. Uh... you know, I just am not
comfortable, Mr. Chair, that. .. we don't really know if. . .if we are taking away the
powers that the police has to go into an establishment. You know, I think the more
critical. .. Code section is the one that we're repealing, 5.04. And ...
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· .. you know, this was written before lap dancing was ever heard of. So I'm not even sir,
sure how .. .critical this is to that-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: World War I!.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --and how definitive ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .{inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. , it would be in...prohibiting that from happening.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .{inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But there is a requirement for a permit in this section of the
Code for any dancing that is done for pay. So that's why I'm hesitant. And ...
· .. I'd like to move to separate this from the rest of the bills. So I guess I'm moving to
amend to separate.
CHAIR KANE: Members, there's a motion, request-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR KANE: --to separate. And it's been seconded. And the separation would be to have a
specific vote on Bill Number 3, which is the bill for an ordinance repealing Chapter 5.04,
Maui County Code, pertaining to dancehalls. Okay? The Chair has recognized the
motion and the second to separate. Members, further discussion on the separation
request?
· .. Hearing none, all in favor-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .{inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, sorry.
CHAIR KANE: --we're just voting on the separation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Okay? Not the substance ofthe-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
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CHAIR KANE: --bills.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any discussion?
... Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed?
... Okay, Members, it's unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to the main motion.

CHAIR KANE: We will be voting on separate ... bill, excuse me, on Bill Number 3 as stated
the, in the original motion, separately. Members, so without objections, we'll enter to the
discussion on the ... Bill Number 3, the repealing Chapter 5.04. That is on the floor for
discussion now. Additional discussion? Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I mean, just. .. again, this is not, I
understand the desire to do housekeeping. I'm sure there's many archaic sections in this
County Code that need to be cleaned out. But. . .I would respectfully request that we
have a chance to actually discuss what we're doing here, rather than just, you know,
accept this in a list of... bills that I don't see this has anything to do with. And so in lieu
of not having the chance to discuss this, I, I would like to just read one section of 5.04
having to do with a permit required. It is unlawful for any person to keep, operate, or
conduct a public dancehall, or to conduct or promote any public dance without having
first obtained a permit so to do in the manner as provided in this Chapter. It's even
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archaic language. Urn ... so that, to me, raises enough questions that I think we need to
be careful about throwing the baby out with the bathwater. Because I, for one, am not in
favor of lap dances in, in public establishments. So I would respectfully request a chance
to discuss this in Committee. And if it's only housekeeping and it certainly doesn't apply
to what we're doing in the budget, I can't see any reason why we couldn't commit this
to ... a committee where we can have full discussion. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER T AV ARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, thank you. Since I think I was the one
that had proposed the deletion of this section of the Code, we've had a discussion about
this in at least two other. .. times that I'm aware of during the budget. And at each time,
we have not repealed this Chapter because somebody was gonna do something to fix it or
to do whatever. I did, at one time, serve on the Subcommittee of the Maui County Code
[sic}. And this was one of the chapters that was recommended by that Subcommittee to,
to repeal. And I think that it's time for us to repeal this Chapter. And if there's
something so glaring that needs to be reinstated, that it be re-entered as a new, as a new
chapter or new bill. The other chapter or section that our Corp. Counsel was reading
from, I think handles what's the modem-day concerns. This Chapter, I suspect, was done
during the war time. And I'm talking about World War II. And it was a concern at the
time. And this has been related to me from my Dad...that there was a concern about
dancehalls in relationship with prostitution. And that's why they had those kind of
controls. So this is a little outdated. I think the new sections, maybe, need to be
incorporated. But if it, as it stands right now, all of those dances that are put on by the
high schools .. .in proms and by the Boys and Girls Clubs or whatever teen dances,
they're all in violation 'cause they have not gotten a permit.
. . . 25 dollars for each time you wanna have a dance. But, you know, I think
that's ...well, of course, there'd be, the, the police can... can say they don't need to .. .I
guess, but no fee shall be charged for a permit if the police, Chief of Police is satisfied
that the proceeds of such dance may be used for the benefit of the school, et cetera,
et cetera. I, I'll, I'll be willing to bet that the Police Chief has never gotten a request to
waive this part of the ... the fees. So I think we're dealing with something that is
outdated... and doesn't apply to anything in our time now, and that we have laws in place
that do deal with the things in our society right now. So I think we, you know, I will
support deleting this Chapter, because like, I think this is the third or the fourth time
we're gonna attempt to do this. And the arguments that come up about we need time to
discuss it and all that, that's fine. But it has been discussed in that Subcommittee like
eight years ago, I think it was. And .. .like I said, if there's something so important in this
Chapter that we need to keep, then let either Police or Prosecutors or Human Concerns or
someone ... (end a/tape, start 3B) . .. consider. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Additional discussion, Members? Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Yeah,
and,
and I. . .I understand
what
Councilmember Tavares is saying. I also think that in the context of the budget, what
people expect in a budget ordinance is--and I realize this does have an attachment to
fees ... what people generally expect, though, in a budget ordinance is funding and
specific line items and all the conventional things. I don't disagree, necessarily, with the
effort to repeal. I'm just not sure that this is the right forum. And for that reason .. .I
really believe that even though this may have been discussed eight years ago and it may
be archaic, I would like to see in context of some of things that are going on in our
community...the comments from the police, as this applies. And... for whatever that's
worth .. .I don't know which committee, I would assume this would go, probably, into
Committee of the Whole. But I would.. .I would ask that whoever were to get this,
would take it up right away as a housekeeping measure. Because I've done that with
many items in my Committee that we found were archaic, and it was dealt with very
expeditiously. So I don't think there's a big huge delay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Johnson. Any additional discussion, Members, on this
item? Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. For my second and final round on this, the
reason this came up was because the permit fee is in the budget--in Appendix B, it's
25 dollars ... according to the fee. And I think we deleted that fee. And because we
deleted that fee, we should also deal with the, the chapter that created it. And in every
budget, we are passing ... ordinances of some kind that are sort of related to the budget
but not totally related to the budget. So it's not uncommon for us to do that. We've
done, you know, ordinance changes to all kinds of things in conjunction with our budget.
But I think the connection between the budget and this Chapter is ... there's a real
connection because the fee is noted in here not as ... as a, as appropriated in the, in
Appendix B, but this is so, this is one of those old ones that actually says what the dollar
amount is. And the whole County has been moving toward any references in the County
Code to a fee, shall say that it should be "the fee as set forth in Appendix B of the
budget" instead of putting the dollar amount in the law itself. So, you know, I would ask
the Members to ... to consider doing this now. All of our Committees, as you know, are
smashed with items. And one more item in here is gonna create one more piece of work
that maybe is unnecessary. So I ask you to consider that also. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Tavares. Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, thank you, Chair. The section of, of the Code,
19.85, concerning adult entertainment activity, it clearly defines this activity as being
activity involving nudity. Lap dancing does not involve nudity. So, I don't see how this
applies to that. Urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Lap-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: As far as-- 63 -
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --is not dancing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --5.04 goes ...there is a provision to allow schools to have
dances without permits, their annual dances that they always have. And, and actually it
specifically says: proceeds of such dance ...to be used ... are to be used or such dances
given for the benefit of any school, religious or charitable institution, welfare, or
community organization or any organization or agency engaged in the entertainment of or
providing recreation for per, persons in the armed services of the United States
.. .(laughter) . .. So that's where it ties back. But. . .I'm sorry, but I just think that. .. we
need to be cautious about just giving a blanket. .. repeal of this because this ...you know,
the, the police are all we, always asking us to give them tools to do their job. And 5.04
gives them the tool to prevent this kind of thing from happening. And so I, for one,
cannot just automatically repeal this bill without discussion. I'm sorry, this is my first
term, I haven't heard this discussion, you know, in the past, so I'm just going on what I
read in the County Code. Unless I can get assurances otherwise from Corp. Counsel, I
don't think that this is a prudent thing for us to include .. .in the overall bill.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further discussion? And, Members, just to be clear, what we
have, we separated, so this motion is to approve the third bill. So an "aye" vote would
support the passage of it. Okay, Members, just to be clear. Any additional discussion?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, all in favor of moving bill number 3, regarding the repeal of
Chapter 5.04, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: We have one, two ...two "noes", seven "ayes".

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Carroll, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

Councilmembers Anderson and Johnson.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.
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EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill relating to dancehalls.

CHAIR KANE: Okay, the motion passes. Thank you, Members. We're moving on to the other
nine bills that were not separated out. Further discussion on the passage of the nine bills
onto the full Council?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, Members, all in favor signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous on bill numbers 1,2,4,5,6, 7,
8,9, and 10.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING ofbiHs, as amended.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Members. Finally, we have the ... question, Members,
to give your Chair and the Staff the authority to make nonsubstantive revisions to the
things that are moving forward to the full Council, Members. Are there any objections to
allowing that request?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, finally, we have the filing of the
following County Communications: County Communication 06-31, from the Budget
Finance Chair, referring to the matter of the Fiscal Year '07 Budget; filing of County
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Communication 06-49, from the Mayor, transmitting correspondence from the Chair of
the Salary Commission, relating to salary increases for the Mayor and the Directors and
Deputy Directors of certain County agencies; County Communication Number 06-91,
from the Mayor, transmitting his proposed budget for '07, Fiscal Year '07 and other
related documents; County Communication 06-92, from the Council Chair, transmitting
correspondence from the Golf Course Superintendent, transmitting the Waiehu Golf
Course revenue reports; County Communication Number 06-93 from the park, Director
of Parks and Recreation, transmitting Waiehu Golf Course revenue reports; and County
Communication Number 06-95 from the Corporation Counsel and the Prosecuting
Attorney, transmitting a proposed bill to adjust the pay plan for deputies corporation
counsel and deputies prosecuting attorney. Is there a motion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, I move that all six County Communications, as read
by you, be filed.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR KANE: Moved and seconded, Members Hokama and Carroll, to file the aforementioned
County Communication filings. Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No further discussion, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Any discussion, Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed?
... Let the record show it's unanimous.
VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Johnson, Mateo, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.
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ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of communications.

CHAIR KANE: Members, we have reached the end of our agenda.
announcements?
NOTE:

Are there any

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Members, this concludes our April 28, 2006 Committee
meeting, the Council's Budget and Finance Committee. Time now is 12:40, this
Committee meeting is adjourned ... (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

12:40 p.m.

Transcribed by: Camille Sakamoto
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